
WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MARCH 23, 2010 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Leo Beecher          Brent Page 
Jennifer Bassarear        Matt Terry 
Anne Blankenship 
 
MEMBERS EXCUSED: 

Curtis Poole 
Gary Sharp 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 

Tim Stephens, Community Development Director 
Bonnie Craig Secretary 
Kent Parry, Mayor (entered the meeting as noted in the minutes) 
 
VISITORS: 

Paul Hicks   LeGrande Blackley   V. Dian Williams 
Nick Mingo   Cameron Stanger   Katie Stanger 
Ron Stringham  Jamie Larsen    Mark Allred 
Kim Parry 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:     Jennifer Bassarear 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The Commission reviewed the minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held March 9, 
2010.  After their review, Commissioner Terry made a motion to approve the minutes as written 
with Council Member Page seconding the motion and the motion carried. 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORT 

 

Mr. Tim Stephens, the Community Development Director, noted that the Mayor would be late to 
this evenings meeting and the City Council report would be given at that time. 
 
OPEN SESSION 

 

Chairman Beecher then opened the meeting to comments from the public present that were not 
on tonight’s agenda. 
 
There were no public comments and Chairman Beecher closed the open session. 
 
 
 
 



OFFICIAL MINUTES 

WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MARCH 23, 2010 

PAGE 2 

 

HOME OCCUPATION—CAMERON STANGER—2308 SOUTH 1980 WEST 

 

Mr. Stephens reviewed this item with the Commission.  He noted the applicant is proposing to 
operate a junk removal business from his home.  The applicant would be removing junk from 
residential and commercial properties and transporting it to a landfill for disposal.  The business 
will involve a 7 X 12 foot utility trailer.   
 
Mr. Cameron Stanger then appeared before the Commission.  The Commission asked Mr. 
Stanger if he happened to be working late one day if there would be a possibility that his trailer 
with the junk in it would be parked at his home overnight.  Mr. Stanger  said he does work at the 
residential sites many times in the evening and that the landfill closes at 5:00 P.M. so there 
would be a possibility the trailer could be parked at his home overnight until he could get it to 
the landfill to be emptied. 
 
Mr. Stanger went on to explain that his trailer is about 5 feet tall and is covered with a tarp 
system, but that it is not totally enclosed.  He said he did not plan on keeping the covered trailer 
parked at his home longer than overnight as he needed it for other jobs. 
 
The Commission asked where the trailer would be parked.  Mr. Stanger said he had an RV pad 
on the side of his home where the trailer would be parked. 
 
The Commission discussed the overnight parking and felt that it was reasonable to leave the 
trailer overnight to give Mr. Stanger time to take it to a disposal facility. 
 
Mr. Stanger went on to say that at some point he hopes to buy a permanent facility where he can 
park his trailer and run his business from. 
 
The Commission did remind Mr. Stanger that if there were any complaints from the neighbors 
regarding the trailer parked at his residence he would need to come back to the Planning 
Commission for further review and discussion regarding his business.  Mr. Stanger said he was 
aware of that part of the ordinance and he had no problem with doing that if he needed to. 
 
There were no further questions from the Commission and Commissioner Terry made a motion 
to approve the conditional use request for a home occupation for Junk Jr. LLC and Mr. Cameron 
Stanger with the following condition: 
 

1. That at no time shall any junk and material that the applicant collects be permitted at the 
home longer than the next business day.  All such materials shall be transported from the 
customer’s site for appropriate disposal to a landfill or a recycle facility. 

 
Commissioner Blankenship seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
 



OFFICIAL MINUTES 

WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MARCH 23, 2010 

PAGE 3 

 

CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST—ADVANCE SUPPLY CO. INC. 601 WEST 900 

SOUTH—PAUL HICKS 

 

Mr. Stephens reviewed this item with the Commission.  He noted that the applicant now operates 
the Utah Safe Company here in the City.  The applicant has applied for a business license and 
conditional use permit for a business office involving firearms sales.  The applicant has indicated 
the application is for a business office only and all firearms will be stored at another location.   
 
Mr. Paul Hicks appeared before the Commission.  He explained to the Commission that he had 
owned Advance Supply Company for about 40 years and had a firearms permit for about 35 
years.  He said he had another firearms business located in Murray as well as a business selling 
safes here in Woods Cross City.  He said the proposed business would not involve more than 
about a dozen firearms that would likely be sold over the internet.  He went on to explain that the 
sale of any firearm does have to be conducted by a firearms dealer so he  mostly just  handles the 
transfer of firearms through sales on the internet.  He said he was required to maintain an office 
so that his records dealing with the sales of the firearms could be available for review at any 
time.  He said he is mostly just interested in having this office so he can maintain his firearms 
license.  He noted he does not stock any firearms but does use his business to transfer the 
firearms after they are sold.  He did note that if perhaps he did have a firearm on the premise for 
any reason it would be stored in one of his safes for safe keeping until the firearm could be 
transferred.  He reiterated he just wanted the business office to keep the records of his firearms 
business so they were conveniently located in case of a review by the Alcohol, Tobacco and 
Firearms division. 
 
Mr. Hicks did say he currently had a firearms license and would get a copy of it to Staff to have 
on file. 
 
There were no further questions from the Commission and Commissioner Bassarear made a 
motion to approve the conditional use request for Advance Supply Co. Inc. and Mr. Paul Hicks.  
Commissioner Page seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING—MOUNTAIN VIEW ESTATES PHASE 5 FINAL PLAT—BRAD 

MACKAY 

 

Mr. Stephens went on to review this item with the Commission.  He noted that the final plat for 
phase 5 of Mountain View estates consisting of 16 lots was now ready for development.  This 
plat had been approved by both the Commission and the City Council last summer but Ivory 
Homes did not have the plat recorded so the approvals had expired.  It was now necessary 
because of this expiration to reapprove the subdivision plat. 
 
Chairman Beecher then opened the public hearing to comments from those present. 
 
Mr. Mark Allred appeared before the Commission.  He noted he lives in the Ivory Homes 
subdivision and had some concerns about the subdivision.  He said when he bought his home in 



OFFICIAL MINUTES 

WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MARCH 23, 2010 

PAGE 4 

 

2007 he was shown a plan of what the finished community would look like.  He said that as time 
has gone on, areas of development have been added and approved making what he thought 
would be a nice open subdivision to one that is becoming over crowded.  He said he was told that 
there would be certain amenities for those who lived within this community since they were 
required to pay HOA dues of $45, he expected these amenities to be available.  He went on to 
say that he felt with the new condo development there were not enough amenities to serve the 
Ivory Homes community and he was hoping that Ivory could add more amenities like a 
basketball court to help ease the congestion at places like the swimming pool that have become 
over crowded.  He said he was just hoping to get what he had paid for. 
 
Chairman Beecher asked Staff if the Planning Commission could help with this issue.  Mr. 
Stephens said the City could review the development agreement to see if the stipulations for 
these amenities were being met.  He noted that HOA issues have not been handled by the City in 
the past.  He did say that phase 5 was in the original development agreement with Ivory. 
 
Chairman Beecher asked Mr. Allred if Ivory had put in what they had planned to or did Mr. 
Allred just want to see more amenities put in. 
 
Mr. Allred said he had bought the home with the understanding that only certain phases would 
be built and now there are more people than had been originally planned and now the 
competition for the amenities is fierce.  He also noted that the HOA dues were bringing in quite a 
bit of money and he felt this money could be put to use in putting in a few more amenities for the 
subdivision.   
 
Chairman Beecher said that this issue was out of the hands of the Planning Commission because 
they were only recommending this final plat be sent to the City Council for their approval.  
Chairman Beecher recommended to Mr. Allred that he attend the next City Council meeting and 
let them know his issues.   
 
At this point in the meeting, Mayor Parry entered the meeting.  Chairman Beecher gave  a recap 
of the discussion of this agenda item to Mayor Parry. 
 
Mayor Parry did say there would be a large park located near the Ivory subdivision within the 
next 24-36 months that would be convenient for the residents of the Ivory subdivision. 
 
Chairman Beecher asked Mr. Allred if this would make a difference to him since the park would 
be close and available for the Ivory residents.  Mr. Allred said it would make a difference but 
wondered if there would be a basketball court located at the park. 
 
The Mayor said he did not think there would be a basketball court at the park but it would have a 
soccer field, a lacrosse field, a playground and lots of green space. 
 
Mr. Allred asked if there would be a swing set.  The Mayor said he did not know if there would 
be a swing set located at the park. 



OFFICIAL MINUTES 

WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MARCH 23, 2010 

PAGE 5 

 

Mr. Allred said it would be nice to have a basketball court located nearby the Ivory subdivision 
since most of the homes are located on a slope so it was hard to have a basketball court at any of 
the homes in the subdivision. 
 
Mr. Jamie Larson, a resident living in the Ivory Subdivision, then appeared before the 
Commission.  He said he felt there was a loss a green space in the subdivision because of the 
townhomes and it seems like the residents are not getting what they thought they were getting 
and wanted more of a green space feel.  He noted the pool was getting used and because of the 
size of the pool it is over packed.  He said the amenities are dwindling as more people move in 
and he would like to see that change. 
 
The Commission asked if all of the phases were planned in the development agreement and Mr. 
Stephens said that they were and the City was bound by that agreement. 
 
Chairman Beecher asked if the residents of the Ivory subdivision had addressed this issue with 
Ivory.  Mr. Allred said no it had not. 
 
Chairman Beecher then called for the Ivory Homes representative to come forward.  Mr. Nick 
Mingo was at tonight’s meeting representing Ivory Homes.  Mr. Mingo said he felt Mr. Allred’s 
concerns were reasonable and he would get Mr. Allred’s contact information and take the 
information that he has heard at tonight’s meeting back to the President of Ivory.  He said he was 
confident that these issues could be resolved and he didn’t think he had heard anything that was 
unreasonable in Mr. Allred’s requests. 
 
There were no more comments and Chairman Beecher closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Terry then made a motion to forward the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation for approval of the Mountain View Phase 5 final plat to the City Council.  
Commissioner Page seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORT 

 

Mayor Kent Parry then reported on the City Council meeting held March 16, 2010.  Please see 
the minutes of that meeting for the details of his report. 
 
HOME OCCUPATION—1357 WEST 2200 SOUTH—DEVIN OLSON 

 

Mr. Stephens then reviewed this item with the Commission.  He noted that the applicant is 
proposing to operate an internet retail business from his home involving Herbalife products.  The 
products will be shipped directly from the manufacturer to the customer. 
 
Mr. Devin Olson appeared before the Commission.  The Commission asked Mr. Olson if there 
would be any customer traffic.  Mr. Olson said that 90-95% of his business would be over the 
internet with the exception of maybe a few customers in the immediate area.   



OFFICIAL MINUTES 

WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MARCH 23, 2010 

PAGE 6 

 

There were no further questions from the Commission and Commissioner Bassarear made a 
motion to approve the conditional use for a home occupation for Mr. Devin Olson.  
Commissioner Blankenship seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING—HATCH ESTATES FINAL PLAT 

 

Mr. Stephens noted this item had been addressed at the last Planning Commission meeting and 
the issues that were holding up the project were in the process of being taken care of.  He said 
the issues of the drainage and grading had been addressed and discussed with the City Engineer 
and the final issue of the Weber Water Basin shares is in the process of being taken care of.  
There was some discussion on how Weber Water shares were allocated and what the 
requirements were.  Mr. Stephens noted that all of this information is subject to Weber Basin 
Water requirements and the City had no control over these requirements. 
 
Chairman Beecher then opened the public hearing. 
 
There were no public comments and Chairman Beecher closed the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Ron Stringham and Ms. Dian Williams then appeared before the Commission.  Ms. Williams 
said she had a letter from Weber Basin Water saying that there were enough water shares for this 
larger parcel of land 15 years ago but because of the greater demand for water, water shares 
needed to be reevaluated for the property.  Weber Basin Water is also requiring that a water 
valve located on the property is working or Mr. Stringham would be required to put a new one in 
place.  Ms. Williams said they have someone working on assessing the valve at the present time 
and would either make sure it was working or they would replace it. 
 
There were no further comments or questions and Commissioner Blankenship made a motion to 
send the Planning Commission’s recommendation for approval of the Hatch Estates Final Plat to 
the City Council with the acknowledgement that the water issue has yet to be resolved.  
Commissioner Page seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
GENERAL AND PENDING 

 

Mr. Stephens noted that he would follow up on the issue from the Planning Commission from 
two weeks ago and the concern from the neighbor about noise coming from the Saworks saw 
sharpening business.  He said he would make a phone call and check to see if there were any 
concerns at this time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



OFFICIAL MINUTES 

WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MARCH 23, 2010 

PAGE 7 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business before the Commission, Commissioner Terry made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:40 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________     ____________________________________ 
 
 Leo Beecher, Chairman    Bonnie S. Craig, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 


